
Equal Opportunity Employer      TTY Dial 7-1-1 or 1-800-735-2900 

411 NE “C” Street, Willamina, Oregon 97396-2783 - Telephone: (503) 876-2242 / Fax: (503) 876-1121 

willaminaoregon.gov 

 Willamina City Council Regular Meeting 
Tuesday, September 10, 2019, 6:00 pm 

West Valley Fire Station 
825 NE Main St. 

Willamina, OR 97396 
 

 

AGENDA 

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL  

FLAG SALUTE 

AGENDA ADDITIONS, DELETIONS, AND CORRECTIONS  

CORRESPONDENCE – City of Willamina Museum Renaming 

PRESENTATIONS – 1. Fire District Update - Chief  Hertel  
  2. Retirement Presentation for Yamhill County Sheriff Deputy Trombla 

Break 

1. Proclamation - National Preparedness Month 
 

CONSENT AGENDA   “(A listing of routine business items, which are adopted with one 
motion, without discussion. However, any COUNCILOR may request that an item be pulled 
from the Consent Agenda for discussion and separate action. The item is then not 
considered after the Consent Agenda items have been voted upon).” 

1. Check Registers – July 1 to 31, 2019 (informational) 
2. Financials July 31, 2019 (informational) 
3. Minutes from the August 13, 2019 City Council Meeting 

PUBLIC HEARING 

1. Amendment to the Development Code  
 

REGULAR AGENDA 



Equal Opportunity Employer      TTY Dial 7-1-1 or 1-800-735-2900 

411 NE “C” Street, Willamina, Oregon 97396-2783 - Telephone: (503) 876-2242 / Fax: (503) 876-1121 

willaminaoregon.gov 

1. Manner of Recruiting Planning Commissioners 
2. Official City of Willamina Flower 
 

INFORMATIONAL REPORTS (Items that require no Council action) – none 

PUBLIC INPUT – BUSINESS FROM THE AUDIENCE  

Public Input: Presentations not scheduled on the Agenda are limited to three (3) minutes. 
Longer presentations should be submitted to the City Recorder before the meeting. 
Anyone wishing to comment on an item of the Regular Agenda will need to sign in on the 
sign-in form. 

MAYORS REPORT 

COUNCIL LIAISON REPORTS 

1. Cemetery Committee Liaison (Councilor Baller) 
2. Chamber Liaison (Councilor Wooden) 
3. Library Liaison (Councilor Lawson) 
4. YCOM Board (Councilor Baller) 
5. Yamhill County Transit Authority Board Member (Councilor Johnson) 

 
INFORMATIONAL REPORTS FROM CITY OFFICERS 

6. City Manager 
7. Sheriff’s Report 
 

EVENT CALENDAR- Informational 

 

 

 
 

 

 



1

Debbie Bernard

From: Debbie Bernard
Sent: Thursday, August 29, 2019 3:29 PM
To: Patty Brooks
Subject: RE: Request to rename the Willamina Museum of History

Thank you Patty! 
 
From: Patty Brooks [mailto:pattybrooks1979@gmail.com]  
Sent: Thursday, August 29, 2019 12:35 PM 
To: Debbie Bernard <BernardD@ci.willamina.or.us> 
Subject: Request to rename the Willamina Museum of History 

 
As I stood in my kitchen making lunch I was thinking about the "event fee".  Since my mind wanders frequently 
I was soon thinking about all of the people who volunteer, yourselves included. All they want is to make 
Willamina a better place.  One person stood out in my mind...Charlene Brown. 
 
Charlene gave so much of her time, energy, and her heart to make the museum a fantastic resource for 
generations to come.  The Bulletin articles by MaryAnne were wonderrful, but I would like to see something 
more permanent. 
 
I am proposing that the council rename the museum to honor Charlene's contribution to making it what it is 
today.  I propose renaming it   "Willamina Charlene ? Brown Memorial Museum of History.  Leaving 
Willamina as the first word of the title should insure internet searches have no trouble finding the 
museum.  Charlene would not approve if that were not the case.  
 
 What I knew of Charlene, she was not a woman who sought the spotlight or accolades, just let her do her 
work.  The name change is to not only honor that work,  but to honor her family who supported her 
dedication.  Families are as much a part of the volunteer process as the volunteers.  Family members give up 
time with  those  they love so that they can volunteer.  I would like to see future generations of Charlene's 
family be reminded of the great woman who loved history and Willamina. 
 
I realize change cost money.  I will pledge the first $50.00 to help defray this cost.  I am hoping that others will 
step up and do the same.  I would be dismayed to think that we failed to honor Charlene Brown because of 
something so insignificant as money. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
Patty D Brooks 
 
Debbie, 
I couldn't remember Charlene's middle initial thus the question mark.  I hope this will suffice to make the 
request and explain why I am doing so.  If not please let me know what else I need to do. 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CONSET AGENDA 





































































































1 
 

August 13, 2019 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

City Of Willamina 
Minutes of the Meeting of the City Council 

August 13, 2019 
6:00 PM 

Meeting recorded 
  

Location of Meeting: 
West Valley Fire Station 
825 NE Main St 
Willamina, Oregon 97396 
  
Present at Meeting:  
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Council President Rita Baller 
Councilor Theresa McKnight 
Councilor Bob Burr 
Councilor Craig Johnson 
Councilor Roberta Lawson 
City Manager Kenna West 
Public Works Director Jeff Brown 
Deputy City Recorder Debbie Bernard 
Guest (not limited to:)  
James Graham, U.S. Census Bureau Partnership Specialist, Los Angeles Region 
Arthur J Schwartz  
Paul Daliquante New Register Reporter 
Absent from Meeting:  
Councilor April Wooden 
  
The regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Willamina was called to order at 6:00 PM 
on August 13, 2019 at the West Valley Fire Station by Mayor Ila Skyberg. Deputy City Recorder 
Bernard called the roll and a quorum was present. Mayor Skyberg led in the flag salute. 
  
Mayor Skyberg announced a special thank you to the City Manager West at her second 
anniversary August 15, 2019 by presenting the City Manager with a basket of fruit and a card. 
 

I. Approval of Agenda 
  
The agenda for the meeting was distributed and unanimously approved with one addition to the 
Consent Agenda, the engagement letter for the financial auditor.  
  

II. Review of Previous Minutes 
  
The minutes of the previous meeting were reviewed and unanimously approved. 
  

III. Consideration of Open Issues 



2 
 

August 13, 2019 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

  
1. Public Input 

Mayor Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg called on Councilor Lawson who signed in to speak. Councilor Lawson 
said that she received a complaint from a local citizen who said he had contacted Staff 
and no action taken is now contacting Council. Councilor Lawson said the citizen is very 
persistent. City Manager West responded she was aware of the fence issue and said that 
the matter is closed and if the citizen wants to continue his concern, he should contact 
Management. 
 
Mayor Skyberg called on Arthur Schwartz next with the West Valley Visioning Project. 
Mr. Schwartz invited the Council to the second West Valley Visioning Project Dinner. 
He shared he had 50 RSVPs, which was similar to the attendance at the first dinner which 
was held in Sheridan.  
 

2. Presentation And Proclamation 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg introduced James Graham,  
U.S. Census Bureau Partnership Specialist, Los Angeles Region.  
 
Mr. Graham clarified that he is not from Los Angeles but lives in Depoe Bay. He said the 
Los Angeles Region encompasses 7 West Coast States. The Decennial Census is under 
the United States Constitution - 1787 Article 1, Section 2. Every ten years a census is 
completed. His role is to reach out to local governments to drive an accurate census. His 
presentation highlighted Justice and Power. The Justice identifies Fair Labor, Power is 
the US House of Representatives, Federal and State, and local Districts, and the Money is 
the $675 billion Federal and $13.5 billion Oregon dollars driven by the Census. Every 
citizen identified is a $3200 value to each community in federal and state dollars, said 
Graham.  
 
Mr. Graham said the Census is relevant, easy and safe. He made a point to share that the 
information collected by the Census is confidential and protected by the law. Mr. Graham 
described the 10 questions asked by the Census:  
 
1. Address 
2. Phone number 
3. Count of each person at that address  
4. Name  
5. Gender  
6. Age and date of birth  
7. Race 
8. Hispanic, Latino or Spanish origin  
9. Whether someone lives somewhere else and  
10. Relationship.  

 
The Decennial Census official start date is April 1, 2020.  



3 
 

August 13, 2019 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

 
Councilor Burr asked how the City gets the $3200 per person. Mr. Graham responded the 
money comes from federal and state programs directly to communities.  
 
Mayor Skyberg read aloud the proclamation, which stated the City of Willamina now 
proclaims its support for the efforts of the 2020 Census and calls upon the community to 
participate 
 

3. Agenda Deletions, Corrections and Additions 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg announced the addition to the Agenda, which was the Engagement Letter 
for the City’s Financial Auditor. The Engagement Letter was added as Item No. 4 under 
the Consent Agenda.  
  

4. Consent Agenda 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg asked Council President Baller for a motion on the Consent Agenda.  
 
Council President Baller read the items on the Consent Agenda, which were: 
1. Check Registers-June 1 to 30, 2019 (informational) 
2. Financials June 30, 2019 (informational) 
3. Minutes from the July 16, 2019 City Council Meeting 
4. Engagement Letter for Financial Auditor 
 
MOTION: Councilor Baller moved to approve the four items on the Consent Agenda. 
Councilor Lawson seconded the motion. Motion carried with Councilors Baller, 
McKnight, Burr, Johnson, and Lawson all in favor.  
  

5. Capital Improvement Plans for the City Of Willamina’s Sewer, Stormwater, Street, and 
Water Systems.  
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
 
Mayor Skyberg stated the question, “Shall the City Council approve the attached Capital 
Improvement Plans for the City of Willamina’s Sewer System, Stormwater System, 
Streets, and Water System? 
 
MOTION: Councilor McKnight moved that the Council approve the attached Sewer, 
Stormwater, Streets, and Water Capital Improvement Plans. Councilor Burr seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried with Councilors Baller, McKnight, Burr, Johnson, and Lawson 
all in favor.   
 
Discussion: City Manager West commented that this is the first step toward planning for 
the future and that it will allow the City to proceed with a review of it’s SDC rates as well 
as plan for future improvements.  
 

6. Amendment and Update of the City of Willamina Water Intake Relocation Project 



4 
 

August 13, 2019 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

Mayor Ila Skyberg 
 
Mayor Skyberg stated the question “Shall the City Council authorize Mayor Skyberg to 
sign the attached letter regarding an update and amendment to the City of Willamina’s 
Water Intake Relocation Project?  
 
MOTION: Councilor Baller moved that the Council authorize Mayor Skyberg to sign the 
attached letter addressed to Oregon Business Development. Councilor Burr seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried with Councilors Baller, McKnight, Burr, Johnson, and Lawson 
all in favor.   

  
Discussion: City Manager West commented on the background.  She explained the City 
Engineer suggested including the Willamina School Campus water line project with the 
City’s water intake project awarded CDBG Grant. The reason for the partnership is to 
address the school water needs and flow issues and curb expenditures — the City 
Engineer recommended connection to the update of the 6th street pump station.  Phase I 
of the Grant, design and engineering, would allow the school to incorporate their design 
and engineering costs into the City’s current project.  Those funds would be considered 
“matching funds” for the grant award City Manager West added that when going out for 
phase II grant funds (the construction phase) that the two projects would become one to 
continue in the cost savings approach.   
 
Councilor Burr asked what would solve the School problem. Public Works Director 
Brown responded the issue is partly elevation and partly the size of the water main. 
Public Works Director Brown explained that the City lines are made up of 10-inch lines, 
8-inch lines, and 6-inch lines.  The School requires a 10-inch line to be installed to supply 
the needed water flow.  
  

7. Mayors Report 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg reported that she and Councilor McKnight attended the Small Cities 
Meeting in Detroit. The discussion was on the legislative amendments that passed. Mayor 
Skyberg spent time at the Cemetery clean-up event and extended the invitation to 
everyone for a future clean-up day on Tuesday, Thursday, or Saturday from 9-12.  
 

8. Council Liaison Reports 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg called on Cemetery Committee Liaison Baller. Councilor Baller reported 
that she attended the first meeting with new members. New member, Meg Commerford, 
who works at Hampton Mill encouraged employees to attend the cemetery clean up. 
Councilor Baller has followed the clean-up on Facebook.   Councilor Baller was 
complimentary regarding the Cemetery Committee and is looking forward to continuing 
on the Committee 
Chamber Liaison Wooden was absent. 
 
Library Liaison Lawson reported that the Library has a cosmos character and they are 



5 
 

August 13, 2019 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

working on the 1st Annual Lu’au Event at Lamson Park.  
 
YCOM Board Liaison Baller reported she was unable to attend this month’s meeting.  
 
Yamhill County Transit Authority Board Member Johnson reported that August 5th was 
the remarkable rider day. They handed out badges and flashers.  
  

9. Reports from City Officers 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg called on Madam City Manager. City Manager West reported that the 
City has been very busy with the city projects including: 

• The Cemetery workshop was a week ago, and we  had a high attendance which 
included the Fire Department, Scout Troop members, Citystaff, and our Mayor.  

 
• The City is gearing up for Trunk or Treat.  

 
• City Manager West invited everyone to check out the work at the City Hall 

Parking Lot which was completed by Public Works Director Brown. The new-
look includes planter boxes and benches.  

 
• The City flower project has received three nominations, including Sweet Pea, Star 

Gazer Lily, and Cone Flower.  
 

• The Lamson Street project starts on September 10, 2019.  
 

Councilor Baller announced her nomination of the Old Fashion White Daisy, also known 
as a Shasta Daisy.  
 
Councilor McKnight asked if there would be curbs and sidewalks on the Lamson Street 
project. City Manager West responded no.  
 
Councilor Johnson asked about the Public Safety Fee. City Manager West responded it 
would be on the next water bill.  
 
Adjourn 
Mayor Skyberg called for a motion to adjourn.  
MOTION: Councilor Burr moved to adjourn at 6:55 PM. Councilor McKnight seconded 
the motion. Motion carried with Councilors Baller, McKnight, Burr, Johnson, and 
Lawson all in favor.   
 
 
 
  

Agenda and Time of Next Meeting 
  

The next meeting will be held at on at:  



6 
 

August 13, 2019 City Council Regular Meeting Minutes 
 

West Valley Fire Station 
825 NE Main St. 
Willamina, OR 97396 
   
The meeting was adjourned at 6:55 PM by Mayor Ila Skyberg. 
  
Minutes submitted by Deputy City Recorder Debbie Bernard 
_________________________________________________  
  
Minutes approved by Mayor Ila Skyberg 
_________________________________________________ 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PUBLIC HEARING 



City of Willamina – LA 19-01/Lot Size in R-2 Zone 1 
 

CITY OF WILLAMINA 
411 NE C Street – P O Box 629 

Willamina, OR 97396 
503-876-2242   fax   503-876-1121 

 

 
STAFF REPORT  

Legislative Amendment 2019-01 
City Council Hearing – September 10, 2019 

 
I.  BACKGROUND 
 
REPORT DATE:  September 3, 2019 
FILE NUMBER: LA 2019-01 
APPLICANT: City of Willamina  
 
LOCATION:   Citywide   
 
REQUEST: Amendment to the Willamina Development Code to reduce the 

minimum lot size, frontage, and setback requirements in the Two-
Family Residential (R-2) Zone.   

 
CRITERIA:  Willamina Development Code:  
  Section 2.102:  Two-Family Residential District (R-2) 
  Section 3.207:  Type IV Actions  
  Willamina Comprehensive Plan 
  Oregon Statewide Goals and Guidelines  
 
EXHIBITS:  A:  Code Amendments – Strikethrough Copy 
   B:  Housing Element, Comprehensive Plan 

C:  City Council Minutes, July 16, 2019 (Initiation) 
 

 
II.  OVERVIEW 
 
Proposal is for amendments to the Willamina Development Code to reduce the minimum 
lot size in the R-2 zone from 6,000 to 5,000 square feet, to reduce the frontage requirement 
in the R-2 zone from 60 to 50 feet, and to reduce the interior side setback requirement from 
7.5 feet to 5 feet. Also, to establish the frontage requirement for townhouses in the R-2 
zone as 25 feet.  
 
A Legislative Amendment is a Type IV action. A Type IV action is a legislative review in which 
the City considers and enacts or amends laws and policies. Private parties cannot request a 



City of Willamina – LA 19-01/Lot Size in R-2 Zone 2 
 

Type IV action. It must be initiated by City staff, Planning Commission, or City Council. Public 
notice and hearings are provided in a Type IV process.  
 
The Willamina City Council initiated these amendments at a regular meeting of the City 
Council on July 15, 2019. The minutes of this meeting are included as Exhibit C.  
 
Notice of the hearings before the Planning Commission and the City Council was published 
in the News-Register on August 9, 2019, at least ten days before the initial hearing. 
 
Notice of the proposed amendments was sent to the Department of Land Conservation and 
Development on July 22, 2019.  
 
A request for comment was sent to the City Engineer and the City Public Works 
Department. No comments or concerns were noted.  
 
The City of Willamina Planning Commission considered the proposal at a public hearing on 
August 27, 2019. After review of the staff report and consideration of public comment, the 
Planning Commission voted to recommend approval of the proposed amendments.  
 
III.  CRITERIA AND FINDINGS 
 
The City of Willamina Comprehensive Plan functions as a guide for future development over 
the long term. The Development Code is intended to implement the goals and policies of 
the Comprehensive Plan.  
 
The Two-Family Residential Zone (R-2) coincides with the Moderate Density designation of 
the Comprehensive Plan:  
 

Comprehensive Plan Designation Implementing Zone 
Low Density Residential (LDR) Single-Family Residential (R-1) 

Moderate Density Residential (MDR) Two-Family Residential (R-2) 
Medium Density Residential (MR) Multi-Family Residential (R-3) 

 
Moderate Density Residential 
 
The MDR designation allows development of single- and two-family dwellings and may 
accommodate between four and seven dwellings per acre, after deducting 30% of land for 
right-of-way purposes. 
 
The following goals of the Willamina Comprehensive Plan are relevant to the proposal to 
reduce the minimum lot size, width, and setback requirements of the R-2 zone:  
 

Goal #1:  To take steps to ensure that Willamina residents are provided with safe and 
sanitary housing. 

 



City of Willamina – LA 19-01/Lot Size in R-2 Zone 3 
 

Goal #2:  Through the Plan and implementing ordinances, to encourage the 
development of a range of housing types and cost levels to adequately meet the 
needs of its citizens. 

 
Findings: The proposed amendment to reduce the minimum lot size requirement of the 
Two-Family Residential (R-2) zone will allow for a density of 6.09 units per acre, which is 
within the density range for the Moderate Density (MDR) designation of the Comprehensive 
Plan.  
 
The proposed amendments to reduce the lot size, width, and setback requirements of the 
(R-2) zone are intended to address Goals 1 and 2 of the Comprehensive Plan by providing  
development opportunities that will reduce the cost of housing intended as starter housing. 
It is believed that housing cost would be reduced by increasing housing development in the 
R-2 zone and by reducing land costs.  
 
 
IV.  CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATION 
 
Based upon the findings as presented above, the City of Willamina Planning Commission 
recommends APPROVAL of Legislative Amendment, LA 19-01 to reduce the lot size, width, 
and setback requirement of the R-2 zone.  
 
 
V.  CITY COUNCIL ACTION  
 
In response to the request for approval of Legislative Amendment (LA 19-01), the City 
Council may take one of the following actions:   

 
A. Make a motion to approve LA 19-01, and adopt the findings as presented by staff in 

the staff report; or  
 
B. Make a motion to approve LA 19-01 with modified findings as determined by the 

City Council; or 
Note:  The Council Member making the motion needs to state the reasons for the 
modifications.  

 
C. Make a motion to continue the public hearing to a date and time certain and 

indicate the additional information needed to allow for a future decision; or  
 
D. Make a motion to deny the application. 

Note:  The Council Member making the motion needs to state the reasons for 
denying the application.    

 
Recommended Motion:  I make a motion to APPROVE the proposal for Legislative 
Amendment, LA 19-01, based upon the findings as indicated in the staff report. 



 

2.100 TWO-FAMILY RESIDENTIAL ZONE (R-2) 
 
2.100.1 Purpose 

 
The purpose of the R-2 District is to provide areas for the development of a 
mixture of single-family, duplex and triplex housing opportunities at densities 
between 4.0 and 4.7 7.0 units per acre. The R-2 District is consistent with the 
Moderate Density Residential Comprehensive Plan designation. 

 
2.100.2 Permitted Uses 

 
Unless otherwise subject to Conditional Use provisions or requirements of this 
Ordinance, the following uses and their accessory uses are permitted in the R-2 
zone: 

 
A. Single-family dwelling, including a single-family manufactured home 

subject to Section 2.303 of this Ordinance. 
 

B. Single-family attached dwelling unit/townhouse. 
 

C. Duplex dwelling on an individual lot of parcel. 
 

D. Public park and recreation area. 
 

E. Partitioning, subject to the provisions in Section 3.106. 
 

F. Subdivisions, subject to the provisions in Section 3.107. 
 

G. Planned unit development subject to the provisions in Section 2.302. 
 

H. Home occupations subject to the provisions in Section 2.306. 
 

I. Residential Care Home. 
 

J. Day care facility (serving fewer than 13 children). 
 
2.100.3 Conditional Uses 

 
The following uses are permitted as conditional uses, provided that such uses are 
approved in accordance with Section 3.103. 

 
A. Church. 

 
B. Public or private school, including pre-school. 



C. Community building 
 

D. Golf course except driving range, or miniature golf operated as a business. 
 

E. Cemetery, including crematorium. 
 

F. Utility facilities, including personal wireless service facilities. 
 

G. Bed and breakfast facility. 
 

H. Boarding House. 
 

I. Farming, excluding livestock. 
 

J. Triplex. 
 

K. Residential Care Facility. 
 
2.100.4 Dimensional Standards 

 
The following dimensional standards shall be the minimum requirements for all 
development in the R-2 District except for modifications permitted under Section 
2.402, General Exceptions. 

 
A. Minimum Lot Area 

 

1. Single-family dwelling, including single-family manufactured 
homes: 5,000 6,000 s.f. 
Single-family attached dwelling: 3,000 s.f. per dwelling unit 

 
2. Duplex: 7,500 s.f. 

 
3. Triplex: 9,000 s.f. 

 
4. Public utility structures:  Lot area shall be adequate to contain all 

proposed structures within the required yard setbacks. 
 

B. Minimum Yard Setback Requirements 
 

1. All principal and conditional use structures shall maintain the 
following minimum yard setbacks. (see pages 129-130 for 
accessory structures): 

 

a. Front Yard 15 feet 

b. Rear Yard 15 feet 



 

 c. Side Yard (interior) 
Side Yard, (attached units, attached side) 
Side Yard (adjacent to street) 

7.5 feet 
0  feet 
15 feet 

d. Garages 20 feet 

C. Maximum Structure Height 25 feet 

D. Minimum Lot Width and Frontage 560 
feet  a. Cul-de-sac/ frontage 40 feet 

 b. Cul-de-sac/width at front building line 60 feet 

E. Minimum Lot Depth 90 feet 
 

2.100.5 Development Standards 
 

All development in the R-2 District shall comply with the applicable provisions of 
Section 2.400 of this Ordinance. In addition, the following specific standards 
shall apply: 

 
A. Off-street parking. Parking shall be as specified in Section 2.203. 

 
B. Subdivisions and partitions. Land divisions shall be reviewed in 

accordance with the provisions of Sections 3.106-3.107. 
 

C. Density.  When R-2 land is subdivided, the minimum density shall be four 
(4) units per acre and the maximum density shall be seven (7) units per 
acre. 

 
D. Lot Coverage.  The following shall mean the maximum permitted lot 

coverage, maximum coverage of public and private parking areas or 
garages, and/or combined maximum lot and parking combined coverage 
required: 

 
Maximum lot coverage: 35% 
Maximum parking area coverage: 30% 
Combined maximum lot and parking area coverage: 65% 

 
E. Yards and Lots. Yards and lots shall conform to the standards of Section 

2.209. 
 

F. Signs. Signs shall conform to the requirements of Section 2.206. 



G. Recreational vehicles, trailers, boats and other similar vehicles shall not 
be parked in the front yard area of the dwelling. Front yard shall not 
include driveway. 

 
H. Driveways shall be separated from a street intersection by at least 20 feet. 

 
I. Accessory structures. Accessory structures as provided for in 

Section 2.209.10. 
 

J. No more than one (1) main building shall be located on a lot or parcel 
 

K. Garage.  A garage of like material and color of the single family/two- 
family dwelling(s) is required. The garage shall be of a minimum of 
240 square feet in size and shall meet building code requirements. 

 



 

 
 
 
 

Page 1 

 
 

Exhibit “A” of Ordinance No. _____ 
 

Housing 
 

This element of the Comprehensive Plan will deal with various facets that are involved in 
an effective housing program; such as the inventory of existing housing (condition and 
type), future housing needs, and problems with providing for future housing need. 

 
Findings 

 
1. Existing Housing 
 

In October of 1996, the Willamina Planning Commission conducted a survey of 
existing housing units.  The purpose of the survey was to determine location, type 
and condition of the existing housing stock in Willamina.  The survey indicated 
that the predominant type of residential housing units were conventional single-
family dwelling units, as it is in most of Oregon's cities.  Also, the use of the 
manufactured home continues to serve as an important alternative to conventional 
frame construction.  The following table lists the city’s current housing inventory 
by number and type of dwelling units.  It should be noted that duplex units were 
not categorized until 1996.  Consequently, in previous years that type of unit was 
categorized as either a single or multiple-family unit. 

 
Table 1 

Willamina Existing Housing Supply 
 

Year 
Total 

Housing 
Units 

Number of Single-
Family Units 

(inc. mobile homes) 

Number of Two-
Family Units 

Number of 
Multiple-Family 

Units 
1978 578 509 NA 69 
1987 619 543 NA 76 
1996 656 568 12 76 

 Source:  1978 Windshield survey by Yamhill County Planning Commission; 
 1987 Windshield survey by Givens/Talbot Assoc., Inc.; 

1996 Windshield survey by MWVCOG staff . 
 



 

 
 
 
 

Page 2 

2. Housing Construction 
 
 The record of new housing construction for Willamina reveals that single-family 

homes are preferred in this area.  The record of permits shows that during the 
period of time from January 1988 through December 1995 there were 33 permits 
issued for single-family or manufactured homes.  During this same period, there 
was 1 permit issued for the construction of a duplex.  The following table shows 
the number of permits issued by category of home for each year. 

 
Table 2 

Willamina Issued Construction Permits 
Year 

(Jan. 1 - 
Dec. 31) 

Total 
Issued 

Permits 

Number for Single-
Family Dwellings 

(inc. mobile homes) 

Number for Two-
Family Dwellings 

Number for 
Multiple-Family 

Dwellings 
1988 8 8 0 0 
1989 1 1 0 0 
1990 4 4 0 0 
1991 3 3 0 0 
1992 1 1 0 0 
1993 5 5 0 0 
1994 3 3 0 0 
1995 9 8 1 0 
Totals 34 33 1 0 

Source: 1996 City of Willamina 
  
3. Housing Supply 
 
 In recent years, a significant amount of development has taken place in the region 

creating an influx of jobs and a resulting need for affordable housing in the area.  
Construction of the Spirit Mountain Casino in Grand Ronde and the Federal 
Prison in Sheridan are prime examples of such development.  Willamina, along 
with other communities in the region, will need to develop additional affordable 
housing units in order to accommodate this growing need. 

 
 Currently the overall quality of housing in Willamina appears to be in fair 

condition.    
 



 

 
 
 
 

Page 3 

4. Projected Housing Need 
 

As its population continues to grow, Willamina will continue to face an increasing 
need for available housing.  The following table shows the total projected housing 
needs by category through the year 2015.  The needs were determined by 
synthesizing the population projections adopted by the Council in 1995 with the 
number of actual housing units currently existing in the city.  Calculations for 
total needed housing units were based on the assumptions of a 3.0% vacancy rate 
and a constant ratio of 2.98 persons per housing unit as established for Willamina 
in the 1990 U.S. Census.  A 3% vacancy rate was incorporated into the housing 
projections in the 1987 Comprehensive Plan.   
 
The percentages of single-family, duplex and multiple-family housing units per 
total available housing units for 1996 are 86.59%, 1.83% and 11.58% 
respectively.   The Department of Land Conservation and Development has 
encouraged the City to plan for a higher percentage of multi-family housing units 
to be consistent with similar projections in the region.  The recommended mix of 
housing units is 75% single-family units, 5% two-family dwelling units, and 20% 
multiple-family dwelling units.  The calculations for needed housing units 
presented in Table 3 are based upon the recommended percentages. 

 
Table 3 

Willamina Housing Needs Projections 
 

Year 
Additional 

Needed 
Housing Units 

Single-Family 
Units 

Two-Family 
Units 

Multiple-
Family Units 

2000 27 21 1 5 
2005 98 73 5 20 
2010 176 132 9 35 
2015 263 197 13 53 
          Source:  1987 Willamina Comprehensive Plan; 

1990 U.S. Census; 
1995 Population projections adopted by Council; 
1996 Windshield survey by MWVCOG staff 

 
Table 3 clearly shows a projected increase in the total number of available 
housing units needed to meet Willamina’s projected population growth.  The 
following table shows the balance of additional housing needed by 2015 to meet 
the projected housing demand shown above. 

  



 

 
 
 
 

Page 4 

Table 4 
Additional Needed Housing by 2015 

 Additional 
Needed 
Housing 

 
Single-Family 
Units (75%) 

 
Two-Family 
Units (5%) 

Multiple-
Family Units 

(20%) 
Existing (1996) 656 568 12 76 
Needed (2015) 919 765 25 129 

Balance 263 197 13 53 
          Source:  1987 Willamina Comprehensive Plan; 

1990 U.S. Census; 
1995 Population projections adopted by Council; 

         1996 Windshield survey by MWVCOG staff 
 

As shown in Table 4, Willamina will need to develop 263 total housing units by 
2015 to meet the housing demand created by the projected population growth.  
These figures are based upon the assumptions of a 3.0% vacancy rate and that the 
1990 average of 2.98 persons per housing unit for Willamina remains constant 
over the planning period. 

 



 

 
 
 
 

Page 5 

5. Proposed Goals and Policies 
 
Goal #1: To take steps to ensure that Willamina residents are provided with 
safe and sanitary housing. 
 
 Policies: 
 
 A. The City should investigate funding opportunities for street 

lighting improvements in existing residential areas.  The cost of 
providing street lighting in newly developed areas shall be borne 
by the developer. 

 
Goal #2: Through the Plan and implementing ordinances, to encourage the 
development of a range of housing types and cost levels to adequately meet the 
needs of its citizens. 
 
 Policies: 
 

A. The City should incorporate residential land into the urban 
growth boundary that will permit development of housing for 
families of all income levels. 
 
B. Where feasible, residential developments should provide 
for recreational opportunities. 
 
C. The City shall investigate programs which promote the 
integration of low income housing with housing targeted toward 
other income groups. 

 



 

 
 
 
 

Page 6 

Goal #3: To encourage the upgrading of the existing housing stock. 
 
 Policies: 
 
 A. The City should solicit the aid of federal, state, and local 

agencies in obtaining funding for the rehabilitation of dilapidated 
housing in the city. 

 
 B. The City shall solicit support for and otherwise encourage 

the weatherization of the existing housing stock to minimize health 
and economic impacts due to rising fuel cost. 

 
Goal #4: To ensure that all future housing developments take into 
consideration soil stability, topography and natural hazards in the design and 
density of the developments. 
 

Policies: 
 
A. Housing densities should be consistent with the suitability 
of the land to support development and should avoid natural 
hazards such as unstable soils, steep topography, flood/slide hazard 
areas and soils with poor drainage. 
 
B. Through the Plan and implementing regulations, the City 
should encourage retainage of any existing natural vegetation and 
should establish requirements for planting in all new residential 
developments. 
 
C. The City should require that all utilities be placed 
underground to improve the visual amenities of new development. 
 
D. The City shall encourage developers to make all new 
residential developments as energy-efficient as possible, including 
consideration of renewable fuel sources. 

 



 

 
 
 
 

Page 7 

Goal #5: To ensure that all new housing developments be provided with 
services (streets, sewer, water,  ambulance, police and fire) and that future 
developments will not overburden the City's ability to provide such services.  
Further, to ensure that the cost of extending such services will be borne by the 
developer. 

 
   Policies: 
 
 A. Residential development should be located in areas that can 

be served by public facilities and services.  The extension of public 
facilities and services shall be paid by the developer. 

 
B. Residential development should be directed into areas 
currently platted and close to the city center before utilizing large 
blocks of vacant land and land presently devoted to agriculture. 
 
C. Residential development shall be consistent with the city’s 
transportation plan in effect, or as amended, at the time 
development is proposed. 
 
D. Multiple family dwellings should be located near 
commercial activities to offer more people non-motorized access to 
commercial services. 
 

Goal #6: To cooperate with all federal, state, regional, and local agencies in 
developing and implementing housing programs to meet the needs of Willamina 
residents. 
 

Policies: 
 
A. The City should encourage programs for increasing the 
city’s housing supply. 
 
B. The City should provide for the collection and 
dissemination of housing information from federal, state, regional, 
and local sources. 
 
C. The City should cooperate and coordinate with federal, 
state,  and local agencies in assisting programs for the 
improvement of housing stock and housing conditions. 
 



 

 
 
 
 

Page 8 

 



1 
 

July 16, 2019 City Council Meeting Minutes 
 

City Of Willamina 
City Council Meeting Minutes 

July 16, 2019 
6:00 PM 

  
Location of Meeting: 
West Valley Fire Station 
825 NE Main St. 
Willamina, Oregon 97396 
  
Present at Meeting:  
Mayor Ila Skyberg  
Council President Rita Baller 
Councilor Theresa McKnight 
Councilor Bob Burr 
Councilor Craig Johnson 
Councilor Roberta Lawson 
City Manager Kenna West 
Deputy City Recorder Debbie Bernard 
Public Works Director Jeff Brown 
Absent: Councilor Wooden 
  
The regular meeting of the Willamina City Council was called to order at 6:00 PM on July 16, 
2019 at West Valley Fire District by Mayor Ila Skyberg. Mayor Skyberg led in the flag salute. 
The Deputy City Recorder took roll call, and a quorum was present.   
 

I. Approval of Agenda 
  
The agenda for the meeting was distributed and unanimously approved with one addition.    
  

II. Review of Previous Minutes 
  
The minutes of the previous meeting were reviewed and unanimously approved with one 
correction. Councilor Burr had an excused absence.    
  
. 
  

III. Consideration of Open Issues 
1. Agenda Deletions, Corrections and Additions 

Mayor Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg commented on one addition to the Agenda. A request to authorize the 
City Manager and Planning Department to begin the process to amend the City of 
Willamina Development Code. Number 4 under the Regular Agenda. 

  
2. Consent Agenda 

Mayor Ila Skyberg 



2 
 

July 16, 2019 City Council Meeting Minutes 
 

Mayor Skyberg called the items on the Consent Agenda read and a motion.  
 
Council President Baller read the items on the consent agenda, which were.  
 
Council President Baller  
1. Check Registers-May 1 to 31, 2019 (informational)  
2. Financials May 31, 2019 (informational)  
3. Minutes from the June 4, 2019 City Council Meeting 
4. Minutes from the July 1, 2019 Special City Council Meeting 
 
MOTION: Councilor Baller moved to approve the four items on the Consent Agenda 
with the correction of noted that Councilor Burr had an excused absence for the June 4, 
2019 City Council meeting minutes. Councilor McKnight seconded the motion. Motion 
carried with Councilors, Baller, McKnight, Burr, Johnson, and Lawson all in favor.  
  
Discussion: Councilor Burr requested a correction to the June 2019 minutes as they show 
him present. He had an excused absence.  
 

3. Personnel Policy Variance 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg stated, "shall the City Council authorize a one-time variance to the City 
of Willamina personnel policy regarding accrued vacation payout? 
 
MOTION: Councilor McKnight moved the City Council authorize a one-time variance to 
the personnel policy regarding vacation leave payout.  Councilor Baller seconded the 
motion. Motion carried with Councilors, Baller, McKnight, Burr, Johnson, and Lawson 
all in favor.    
 
Discussion: Councilor Burr asked City Manager West to explain the onetime exception.    
City Manager West said before her leadership; the vacation requirement was not 
imposed. Now followed, employees are required to use it or lost it and then in a position 
of hardship as the employee must take a significant number of days in a short time. 
Therefore, substantial accruals occurred, which are also a liability to the City to carry on 
the books. City Manager West further explained it was also unhealthy for staff not taking 
time off. Therefore, the request is to correct that problem by the employee and City 
Management taking a 20% reduction in accrued vacation, which results in an 80% 
vacation accrual payment to the employee.  
 

4. City Flower Project 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg stated, "shall the City Council authorize City Management to pursue the 
possible adoption of a City Flower? Councilor McKnight seconded the motion.  
 
MOTION: Councilor Baller moved the City Council authorize the City Manager to 
pursue the possible adoption of a City Flower. Councilor McKnight seconded the motion. 



3 
 

July 16, 2019 City Council Meeting Minutes 
 

Motion carried with Councilors, Baller, McKnight, Burr, Johnson, and Lawson all in 
favor.    
 
Discussion: City Manager West commented that we all have been doing heaving lifting 
in the past two years, and it was time for just plain fun. She said we worked hard on 
getting improving our infrastructure and several other tasks. So would it not be fun to get 
citizens involved and all do something fun for us, she said.  
  

5. Library Board Appointment 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg stated, "shall the City Council consider applications for the Library 
Board and appoint a member to the vacancy? 
 
MOTION: Councilor Burr moved to allow the Mayor to appoint an applicant to the 
Library Board. Councilor Lawson seconded the motion. Motion carried with Councilors, 
Baller, McKnight, Burr, Johnson, and Lawson all in favor.     
 
Discussion: Councilor Burr said he hoped that there would be a volunteer position for the 
person that does not get the appointment. Mayor Skyberg then appointed Kepola Rene 
Napoleon. 
 
MOTION: Councilor Burr moved to confirm Mayor Skyberg's appointment of Kepola 
Rene Napoleon to the Library Board. Councilor Baller seconded the motion. Motion 
carried with Councilors, Baller, McKnight, Burr, Johnson, and Lawson all in favor.     
  

6. Amendment To The City Of Willamina Development Code 
Mayor Ila Skyberg 
Mayor Skyberg stated, "shall the City Council authorize the City Manager and Planning 
Department to begin the process to amend the City of Willamina Development Code? 
 
MOTION: Councilor Baller moved the City Council authorize the City Manager and 
Planning Department to begin the process to amend the City of Willamina Development 
Code. Councilor McKnight seconded the motion. Motion carried with Councilors, Baller, 
McKnight, Burr, Johnson, and Lawson all in favor.      
 
Discussion: City Manager West commented on the request to amend the development 
code for smaller lots size had come from several meetings in the recent past. When asked 
what type of housing is needed in Willamina Superintendent Zimbrick responded “starter 
homes” during a pre-app meeting. City Manager West further explained that Council 
Goal No. 9 is to address a smaller footprint for homes and smaller lots, which would 
allow the younger generations the opportunity to purchase a home.  
 
Councilor Burr questioned our SDC’s. City Manager West responded that the City’s 
CIP’s our now completed and we will be going out for bid on the review of (SDC) 
System Development Charges.  
 



4 
 

July 16, 2019 City Council Meeting Minutes 
 

Councilor Baller said she does not like smaller lots. However, understands the need. She 
added that the amendment seems like a reasonable step. 
 
Councilor Baller commented she would like to suggest a park for a new subdivision and 
if not a park, what about playground equipment.  
 
City Manager West responded and said that we currently have too many parks to 
maintain and do not have the manpower or funds to support another park in the City.  
 
Councilor Lawson commented that she would like to address a sore subject of high water 
bills. She said a house sold for $110,000 on 5th street with a water bill due of $1400.00. 
Councilor Lawson, asked why? City Manager West said that we do our best to collect 
and get pushed back. City Manager West added that the City imposed a letter, which goes 
to the property owners when a water/sewer account gets behind to help prevent excessive 
outstanding balances.  
 

7. Mayor’s Report 
Mayor Skyberg asked for a motion to send Evelyn Griffey-Huggins a thank you for 
applying to the Library Board and mention she can volunteer.  
 
MOTION: Councilor Burr moved to send a thank you Evelyn Griffey-Huggins. 
Councilor Baller seconded the motion. Motion carried with Councilors, Baller, 
McKnight, Burr, Johnson, and Lawson all in favor.      
 
Mayor Skyberg shared a “Thank You” from Grand Sheramina Community Services. The 
thanks were for supporting Grand Sheramina Community Services with a donation of 56 
pounds of food, which they appreciated.  
 
Mayor Skyberg reported she attended a works shop on making space for trees. She said 
the discussion centered on planting trees and planting more trees; along with the 
placement of trees. She said that life expectancy of a tree is 20 years. 
 
Mayor Skyberg asked the Council for hands regarding who is attending the City of 
Lafayette Local Dinner on August 15, 2019. The location is Red Ridge.  
 
Councilors Baller, Lawson, McKnight and Mayor Skyberg are attending.  

 
8. Councilor Liaison Reports 

Mayor Skyberg called Cemetery Board Liaison Baller to report. Councilor Baller said she 
had nothing to report, as there was no meeting.  
 
Mayor Skyberg called on Library Liaison Lawson to report. Councilor Lawson reported 
the Library has an exceptional reading program this year. There is a stargazing event on 
August 17th at 11:00 PM. In addition, there is no meeting in August for the Board.  
 



5 
 

July 16, 2019 City Council Meeting Minutes 
 

Next, Mayor Skyberg called on YCOM Liason. Councilor Baller reported postponement 
of the next meeting. 
 
Yamhill County Transit Board Liaison. Councilor Johnson reported Bus 22 begins to 
travel from the Community Center in Grand Ronde to WinCo on Saturdays.  

 
9. Informational Reports from City Officers 

Mayor Skyberg  
City Manager West reported that the Deputy City Recorder move to the West Valley Fire 
is complete. In addition, she met with the City Franchise Representative from Portland 
General Electric. The franchise fees paid to the City are approximately $63.000. City 
Manager West shared a 2019 City of Willamina annual franchise & activities report 
outline the fees paid and detailing their clean energy vision for the future.  
 
City Manager West shared an article from the July 16, 2019 News-Register written on 
her husband’s grandfather and Oregon Governor, Oz West from the early 1900s.  
 
MOTION: Councilor Burr moved to adjourn. Councilor McKnight seconded the motion. 
Motion carried with Councilors, Baller, McKnight, Burr, Johnson, and Lawson all in 
favor.   
 
Councilor Lawson requested the Council reopen the meeting.  
 
MOTION: Councilor McKnight moved to reopen the Regular Session. Councilor 
Lawson seconded the motion. Motion carried with Councilors, Baller, McKnight, Burr, 
Johnson, and Lawson all in favor.   
 
Councilor Lawson said that she had been contacted regarding a property on 5th that had 
overgrown berry bushes that have invaded the whole backside of a house preventing the 
homeowner from the use of the back door if there is a fire. She asked if there is 
something that can be done to clean up the property.  
 
City Manager West responded that the City takes care of the City’s property. The City 
cannot use public funds to take care of the private property. There was a suggestion to 
contact the Fire Chief on the condition of the property for a fire hazard. 
 
MOTION: Councilor Lawson moved to adjourn. Councilor McKnight seconded the 
motion. Motion carried with Councilors, Baller, McKnight, Burr, Johnson, and Lawson 
all in favor.   
 

  
 
 
  

IV. Agenda and Time of Next Meeting 
  



6 
 

July 16, 2019 City Council Meeting Minutes 
 

The next meeting will be held at PM on August 13, 2019 at:  
West Valley Fire Station 
825 NE Main St 
Willamina, Oregon 97396 
  
  

  
The meeting was adjourned at 6:50 PM by Mayor Ila Skyberg. 
 
  
Minutes submitted by Deputy City Recorder, Debbie Bernard 
 
_________________________________________________________  
Minutes approved by Mayor Ila Skyberg 
 
_________________________________________________________ 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REGULAR AGENDA 



City of Willamina 
Staff Report 
FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 10, 2019 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
 
FROM: KENNA L. WEST, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: RESOLUTION REGARDING MANNER OF ADVERTISING PLANNING 
 COMMISSION VACANCIES 
 
ISSUE 
 
Shall the City Council approve Resolution 19-20-002 directing and authorizing City staff 
on the advertisement locations for all future advertising of Planning Commission 
vacancies? 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Approve Resolution 19-20-002 directing and authorizing City staff on the advertisement 
locations for all future advertising of Planning Commission vacancies. 
 
SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 
 
The City of Willamina Code of Ordinances provides that the City Council shall authorize 
the manner in which the Planning Commission vacancies are advertised.  Due to the 
meeting dates of the City Council this has led to a significant delay in advertising for 
vacant City of Willamina Planning Commission positions. 
 
Historically, the City of Willamina has advertised for vacant Planning Commission 
positions via the City website, the Willamina School District reader board, by publishing 
in at least one local news or information publication, and by posting at City Hall.  These 
forms of advertisement have led to successful recruitments for at least the last two 
years. 
 
In order to reduce the time that a Planning Commission position remains vacant and to 
expedite the advertisement of those vacant positions, City management recommends 
that the City Council approve Resolution 19-20-002 directing and authorizing City staff 
to advertise all future Planning Commission vacancies as noted above. 
 
FACTS AND FINDINGS 
 

1. The City of Willamina Code of Ordinances provides that the City Council shall 
direct the manner in which the Planning Commission vacancies are 
advertised.   
 



City of Willamina 
Staff Report 
For City Council Meeting of September 10, 2019 
Page 2 
 

2. Due to the timing of the City Council meetings, this has resulted in a delay in 
filling Planning Commission vacancies. 

 
3. In order to more quickly and efficiently fill any vacancies on the Planning 

Commission, the attached Resolution 19-20-002 provides City staff with the 
authority to advertise those positions in the manner prescribed within that 
Resolution. 

 
Proposed Motion:  I move that the City Council approve Resolution 19-20-002 directing 

and authorizing City staff on the manner in which future Planning Commission 
vacancies are advertised. 

 
       
      Kenna L. West__________________ 
      Kenna L. West, City Manager 
 
Attachments: Resolution 19-20-002 
  
  



An Equal Opportunity Employer 
411 N.E. “C” Street, Willamina, Oregon 97396-2783   Telephone: (503) 876-2242 

www.willaminaoregon.gov 

 
 

 Mayor Ila Skyberg 
 

Council Members: 
 

Rita Baller, Council President 
Bob Burr 
Craig Johnson 
Roberta Lawson 
Theresa McKnight 
April Wooden 
 
 

 
 
City Management: 
 
City Manager:  Kenna L. West 
Finance Manager:  Scott Clark 
Public Works Director:  Jeff Brown 
Library Director:  Sarah Frost 
 

BEFORE THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF WILLAMINA SITTING FOR THE TRANSACTION OF 
BUSINESS 

 
RESOLUTION NUMBER 19-20-002 
 
A Resolution of the Willamina City Council identifying the manner in which the Planning Commission 
Vacancies shall be advertised. 
 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Willamina Code of Ordinances, provides that the City Council shall identify the 
manner in which the Planning Commission vacancies shall be advertised; and 
 
WHEREAS, historically, the advertisement for the Planning Commission vacancies has been via the 
City of Willamina website, the Willamina School District reader board, in at least one local news or 
information publication, and posting at City Hall; and 
 
WHEREAS, these advertisements were successful in procuring applications for the City of Willamina 
Planning Commission; and 
 
WHEREAS, this process as resulted in significant delays in advertising of the vacant positions due to 
the timing of City Council meetings, which in turn has resulted in delays in filling these important 
positions;  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
WILLAMINA THAT until and unless otherwise directed by the City Council, that all future 
advertisements for Planning Commission vacancies shall be via the City of Willamina website, the 
Willamina School District reader board, in at least one local news or information publication, and by 
posting at City Hall; and  

 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that City staff may post the advertisements for any Planning 

Commission vacancy as noted above without being required to request approval from the City 
Council as to the manner in which the vacancies are advertised. 
 
PASSED and ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Willamina this 10th day of September, 
2019. 
 
 
        

Ila Skyberg, Mayor      

ATTEST: 

    ____________________ 
Debbie Bernard, Deputy City Recorder  

 

http://www.willaminaoregon.gov/


City of Willamina 
Staff Report 
FOR THE CITY COUNCIL MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 10, 2019 
 
TO:  MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 
 
FROM: KENNA WEST, CITY MANAGER 
 
SUBJECT: CITY FLOWER PROJECT 
 
ISSUE 
 
Shall the City Council adopt one of five nominated flowers as the Official Flower of the City of 
Willamina? 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
Adopt one of the five nominated flowers as the Official Flower of the City of Willamina. 
 
SUMMARY AND BACKGROUND 
 
At the July City Council meeting, the City of Willamina City Council authorized staff to proceed 
with requests for nominations of an official City of Willamina City Flower.  After pursuing 
nominations via the City newsletter, in person at meetings, and in person at City Hall, staff 
received five nominations including: 
 
 Coneflower 
 Dwarf Lilac 
 Shasta Daisy 
 Stargazer Lily 
 Sweet Pea 
 
The preferred attributes for the City Flower include: 
 
 Pollinator 
 Perennial 
 Native 
 Long Bloom Season 
 
Attached is a picture of each nominated flower with the attributes denoted next to the picture. 
 
Once adopted, the City will plant the City Flower in the City Hall gardens, in our planters, and if 
possible in our Parks.  We will add the City Flower designation to our new website design, and 
in many of the City’s marketing and economic development fliers. 
 
FACTS AND FINDINGS 
 

1. At the July 2019 City Council meeting, the City of Willamina City Council authorized staff 
to proceed with an Official City Flower project. 
 



City of Willamina 
Staff Report 
For City Council Meeting of September 10, 2019 
Page 2 
 

2. Nominations were sought from our citizens in various venues including via the City’s 
newsletter, at meetings, and in-person at City Hall. 
 

3. Five flowers were nominated including the Coneflower, Dwarf Lilac, Shasta Daisy, 
Stargazer Lily, and Sweet Pea. 
 

4. The preferred attributes include being a pollinator to help support the waning bee 
population, a perennial so that the flower will return year after year without the need to 
replant, native to the area, and a long bloom season. 
 

5. Attached is a picture of each nominated flower with the particular attributes denoted next 
to the picture. 

 
Proposed Motion: I move that the City Council adopt the _______________ as the official City 

of Willamina Flower 
 
 
 
      ________________________________________ 
      Kenna L. West, City Manager 
 
Attachments:  Nominated Flowers with pictures and attributes 



NOMINATED FLOWERS  

FOR 

CITY OF WILLAMINA OFFICIAL FLOWER 

 
 

 
CONEFLOWER 
 
Multiple Colors 
 
Blooms:  Mid-Summer to Fall 
 
Perennial:  Yes 
 
Pollinator:  Yes 
 
Native:  No 
 
Scented:  No 
 
 

 
 

DWARF LILAC 
 
Purple/Pink/White 
 
Blooms: Spring 
 
Perennial:  Yes 
 
Pollinator:  Yes 
 
Native:  No 
 

      Scented:  Yes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 
SHASTA DAISY 
 
White with Yellow Center 
 
Blooms: Summer to Early Fall 
 
Perennial:  Yes 
 
Pollinator:  No 
 
Native:  No 
 
Scented:  No 
 
 

 
STARGAZER LILY 
 
Pink 
 
Blooms: Mid to Late Summer 
 
Perennial:  Yes 
 
Pollinator:  Yes 
 
Native:  No 
 
Scented:  Yes 
 

 
 

SWEET PEA 
 
Multiple Pastel Colors 
 
Blooms: Early to Mid-Summer 
 
Perennial:  No 
 
Pollinator:  Yes 
 
Native:  No 
 
Scented:  Yes 
 

 



    City     UCR Description 8/1/2018 to 
8/31/2018

8/1/2019 to 
8/31/2019

Percentage 
Change

  YTD   Prior Year

WILLAMINA

Part 1

Aggravated Assault                 1 0 1 5

Arson                              2 0 2 4

Burglary-Business                  0 0 1 3

Burglary-Non-Residence             0 0 1 4

Burglary-Residence                 0 1 7 6

Larceny                            6 6 43 67

Motor Vehicle Theft-Auto           0 0 3 3

Murder                             0 0 1

Rape                               1 0 2

Robbery                            0 0 1

Part 1 Total 10 7 -30.00 % 58 96

Part 2

All Other                          1 1 10 11

Animal Problems                    1 0 1

Disorderly Conduct                 1 0 8 10

Drug Laws                          1 3 200.00 % 22 21

DUII                               0 2 7 4

Forgery                            0 0 2 5

Fraud                              0 1 4 1

Kidnapping                         0 0 1

Liquor Laws                        0 0 2 3

Runaway                            1 0 4 4

Sex Offenses                       1 0 4 6

Simple Assault                     2 1 -50.00 % 26 36

Stolen Property                    0 0 1

Tresspass/Prowler                  1 0 9 14

Vandalism                          2 2 24 33

Total For WILLAMINA 48 32 -33.33 % 347 532

Report run date: 9/4/2019

Yamhill County Sheriff's Office
 Crime Summary for WILLAMINA

From 8/1/2019 to 8/31/2019



    City     UCR Description 8/1/2018 to 
8/31/2018

8/1/2019 to 
8/31/2019

Percentage 
Change

  YTD   Prior Year

WILLAMINA

Weapons                            0 1 2

Part 2 Total 11 11 124 151

Part 3

All Other                          8 10 25.00 % 68 101

Non-Reportable Offenses            19 4 -78.95 % 97 184

Part 3 Total 27 14 -48.15 % 165 285

Total For WILLAMINA 48 32 -33.33 % 347 532

Report run date: 9/4/2019

Yamhill County Sheriff's Office
 Crime Summary for WILLAMINA

From 8/1/2019 to 8/31/2019



   

Yearly Schedule of Events
CITY OF WILLAMNA CITY COUNCIL 

Su M Tu W Th F Sa July
1 2 3 4 5 6 07/04/19 (Thu) Independence day - CITY HALL CLOSED holiday

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 07/02/19 (Tues) Planning Commission meeting
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 07/15/19 (Tues) Deadline for filing the LB 50 meeting
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 07/16/19 (Tues) City Council Regular Meeting Note New Date meeting
28 29 30 31

Su M Tu W Th F Sa August
1 2 3 08/06/19 (Tues) Planning Commission Regular Meeting meeting

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 08/13/19 (Tues) City Council Regular Meeting meeting
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 08/27/19 (Tues) Rescheduled Planning Commission Meeting meeting
18 19 20 21 22 23 24
25 26 27 28 29 30 31

Su M Tu W Th F Sa September
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 09/02/19 (Mon) Labor Day holiday
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 09/03/19 (Tue) Planning Commission Regular Meeting meeting

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 09/10/19 (Tue) City Council Regular Meeting meeting
22 23 24 25 26 27 28
29 30

Su M Tu W Th F Sa October
1 2 3 4 5 10/01/19 (Tue) Planning Commission Meeting meeting

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 10/08/19 (Tue) City Council Meeting meeting
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 10/14/19 (Mon) Columbus Day holiday
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 10/24/19 (Thu) United Nations Day holiday
27 28 29 30 31 10/31/19 (Thu) Halloween holiday

November
Su M Tu W Th F Sa 11/05/19 (Tues) Planning Commission Meeting meeting

1 2 11/12/19 (Tues) City Council Meeting meeting
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 11/11/19 (Mon) Veterans Day holiday

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 11/28/19 (Thu) Thanksgiving holiday
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 11/03/19 (Sun) Daylight Saving (move clocks back 1 hour) holiday
24 25 26 27 28 29 30

Su M Tu W Th F Sa
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 December
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 12/03/19 (Tues) Planning Commission meeting

15 16 17 18 19 20 21 12/10/19 (Tues) City Council Meeting meeting
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 12/24/19 (Tue) Christmas Eve holiday
29 30 31 12/25/19 (Wed) Christmas Day holiday

12/31/19 (Tue) New Year's Eve holiday

October 2019

July 2019

November 2019

December 2019

September 2019

August 2019


	1. 2019.09.10.CITY COUNCIL AGENDA__Revised
	1.0.Memo Style
	1.a.CONSENT AGENDA
	1.b.07-31-19 Check Register
	1.c.07-31-19 Financial Statements
	1.d.2019.08.13.CITY COUNCIL REG MTG MINUTES.2504048
	1.e.PUBLIC HEARING COVERSHEET
	2.a.SR CC LA 19-01, R-2 Lot Size
	I.  BACKGROUND
	IV.  CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATION

	2.b.Exhibit A Code Amendments - Strikethrough Copy
	2.c.Exhibit B Housing Element, Comprehensive Plan
	2.c.Exhibit C Council Minutes - July 16, 2019
	3.a.REGULAR. AGENDA
	5.a.Staff Report_Planning Commission Advertising_09.10.2019
	5.b.Resolution 19-20-002_Planning Commission Vacancy Advertisement_09.10.2019
	6.a.Staff Report_City Flower Adoption_09.10.2019
	6.b.Attachment_City Flower Nominations_09.10.2019
	7.a.Crime Stats by City
	19.2019 yearly_schedule_of_events
	Schedule
	Sheet1
	Help
	©


